The Bayesian approach to poverty measurement

Lecture 4: Restricted stochastic dominance

Michel Lubrano

November 2022

Contents

1	Introduction	2
2	Poverty deficit curves and stochastic dominance2.1FGT indices and poverty deficit curves2.2Mathematical definition of stochastic dominance2.3Ordering income distributions and poverty indices	2 2 3 5
3	Testing for stochastic dominance	5
	3.1 Hypotheses	5
	3.2 A classical test	6
	3.3 A Bayesian test	7
4	GIC dominance	8
	4.1 Pro-poor growth	8
	4.2 Trickle down theory and the UK case	9
5	TIP dominance	11
	5.1 Stochastic dominance and TIP dominance	11
	5.2 A Bayesian test	13
	5.3 Child poverty in Germany	14
	5.4 The difference between child and adult poverty	14
6	Conclusion and discussion	15

1 Introduction

The notion of stochastic dominance is very important in poverty analysis. Depending on the shape of the income distribution, poverty indices can give quite different results when varying the poverty line z, as underlined in Foster and Shorrocks (1988). More precisely, there can be more poverty in country A than in country B for poverty line z_1 and the reverse result for poverty line z_2 . We would like to have poverty comparisons which are valid whatever the level of the poverty line. This is the notion of stochastic dominance.

Stochastic dominance is a mathematical notion that allows to compare distributions. It comes from the theory of probability with Blackwell (1953), was used to solve decision problems under uncertainty in various contexts. However and most importantly for us, it was used by Atkinson (1970) to compare income distributions, replacing the utility function in individual decision problems by a social welfare function, making the parallel between risk aversion in an individual decision problem and aversion for inequality in a collective decision problem at the level of a society.

2 Poverty deficit curves and stochastic dominance

There is a nice relation between FGT poverty indices and the notion of stochastic dominance. It is useful to detail this relationship in order to explain what is exactly stochastic dominance.

2.1 FGT indices and poverty deficit curves

Let us recall that if F(.) is the income distribution and z the poverty line, then for a given α this family of poverty indices is defined by:

$$P_{\alpha}(z) = \int_{0}^{z} (1 - x/z)^{\alpha} \,\mathrm{d}F(x).$$
(1)

If we now let z varying in the domain of definition of x, we get the *poverty* incidence curve for $\alpha = 0$, using a terminology due to Ravallion (1996). Poverty can be measured by counting the poor with F(z). We might like to measure the severity of poverty by measuring the surface under the poverty incidence curve given by:

$$\int_0^z F(x) \mathrm{d}x.$$

We can decompose this surface, using integration by parts with u = dx, v = F(x) and $z = \int_0^z dx$:

$$\int_0^z F(x)dx = z \int_0^z f(x)dx - \int_0^z xf(x)dx = z \int_0^z (1 - x/z)f(x)dx.$$
 (2)

The surface below the incidence curve is thus equal to the poverty line times the truncated mean of the relative poverty gap, the latter being defined by:

$$1 - x/z$$
.

If we divide on both sides of (2) by z, we get the second poverty index of Foster et al. (1984) noted $P_1(z)$: It was called the normalised poverty deficit by Atkinson:

$$\frac{1}{z} \int_0^z F(x) dx = \int_0^z (1 - x/z) f(x) dx = P_1(z).$$

If we now let z vary over the domain of x, we get the *poverty deficit curve*. Calling μ_p the average standard of living of the poor and using some integral calculus we get:

$$P_1 = F(z) \left[1 - \frac{\mu_p}{z} \right] = P_0 \left[1 - \frac{\mu_p}{z} \right].$$
(3)

These two curves, *poverty incidence curve* and *poverty deficit curve* are directly related to the notion of stochastic dominance at the order one and at the order two.

2.2 Mathematical definition of stochastic dominance

The usual and simplified definition of stochastic dominance at the order one (or first degree stochastic dominance) is (see e.g. Hadar and Russell 1969):

Definition 1 The probability distribution F stochastically dominates the probability distribution G at the order one if and only if:

$$F(z) < G(z) \qquad \forall z \in [0, +\infty[$$

This definition means that the probability of getting z or less is not larger with F than it is with G, whatever the value of z. The usual definition make use of loose inequality, but add the restriction that there are at least one point where the inequality is strict. This definition allows us to compare two distributions only when they do not intersect. If they intersect, we cannot conclude. In this case, it might be useful to use a second notion, which is stochastic dominance at the second order. Second order (or second degree) stochastic dominance is based on the comparison of the surface under the cumulative distribution functions and may remove this indeterminacy. We have:

Definition 2 The probability distribution F stochastically dominates the probability distribution G at the order two if and only if

$$\int_0^z [F(t) - G(t)]dt < 0 \qquad \forall z \in [0, +\infty[.$$

We can define stochastic dominance for any order because there is a strict relation between each order. It is useful to consider a sequence of integrals for a density f that we define as follows:

$$F_0(x) = f(x), \tag{4}$$

$$F_1(x) = \int_0^x F_0(t)dt,$$
 (5)

$$F_2(x) = \int_0^x F_1(t)dt,$$
 (6)

(7)

that we can generalise in the following recurrence relation:

$$F_s(x) = \int_0^x F_{s-1}(t)dt = \frac{1}{(s-1)!} \int_0^x (x-t)^{s-1} f(t)dt.$$

Because distributions are positive and increasing functions of x, stochastic dominance at the order s, which can be written as:

$$F_s(z) \le G_s(z) \qquad \forall z \in [0, +\infty[$$

implies stochastic dominance at any higher order. In particular, stochastic dominance at the order two:

$$F_2(x) \le G_2(x), \forall x$$

implies

$$F_{2+j}(x) \le G_{2+j}(x), \,\forall j \ge 1$$

but does not rely on stochastic dominance at the order 1:

$$F_1(x) \le G_1(x), \quad \forall x.$$

2.3 Ordering income distributions and poverty indices

Let us start from the general recurrence relation:

$$F_s(x) = \int_0^x F_{s-1}(t)dt = \frac{1}{(s-1)!} \int_0^x (x-t)^{s-1} f(t)dt.$$

This last writing is particularly interesting as it directly links the Foster et al. (1984) poverty indices to the notion of stochastic dominance. As a matter of fact, if we set x equal to the poverty line z, we discover that the dominance function $F_s(z)$ is identical to the poverty incidence curve $P_{s-1}(z)$ modulo a proportional factor that depends only on s. Stochastic dominance thus correspond to the generalisation of these indices when we let the poverty line z vary over the whole segment $[0, +\infty[$. This is the point of view developed in Atkinson (1987) and in Foster and Shorrocks (1988). Let us note that the notion of z.

The link with poverty indices is even more direct if we consider a notion of restricted dominance instead of a notion of full dominance. We no longer consider inequalities for all x, but inequalities for a restricted interval $[z_*, z^*]$. We thus consider:

$$F_s(z) = \frac{1}{(s-1)!} \int_0^z (z-t)^{s-1} f(t) dt \qquad \forall z \in [z_*, z^*].$$

This writing allows us to compare two income distributions when the poverty line varies between two boundaries. This leads to a robust comparison which will no longer be strictly depend on the definition chosen for the poverty line.

3 Testing for stochastic dominance

When we are interested in poverty, the meaningful concept is restricted stochastic dominance. Whenever we speak about poverty, we have to define a poverty line, using for instance half the mean or half the median. If we want to make robust comparisons, it is better to select a rather wide interval instead of just a point. We thus consider the interval $[z_*, z^*]$ which corresponds to two extreme reasonable values for the poverty line.

3.1 Hypotheses

We have two samples A and B for which we have computed two dominance curves at the order s that we note $F_s^A(x)$ and $F_s^B(x)$ for the two samples. For comparing the two distributions in term of stochastic dominance, we can distinguish three different type of hypothesis that can be in turn the null and the alternative in a classical framework. We have first to define the dominance function $\delta_s(x)$:

$$\delta_s(x) = F_s^A(x) - F_s^B(x),$$

which is a distance function between two distributions. Then:

- 1. $H_0: \delta_s(x) = 0 \quad \forall x \in [z_*, z^*]$. The two distributions corresponding to samples A and B cannot be distinguished.
- 2. $H_1: \delta_s(x) \ge 0 \quad \forall x \in [z_*, z^*]$. The two distributions are ranked, distribution *B* clearly dominates distribution *A*.
- 3. H_2 : $\delta_s(x)$ can be anything. There is no possibility to rank the two distributions.

If we were in an uni-dimensional framework, H_0 would correspond to a point hypothesis, H_1 would lead to a unilateral test and H_2 to a bilateral test. But here these hypotheses have to be verified for a fixed grid of equidistant points covering the interval $[z_*, z^*]$.

3.2 A classical test

Let us consider the following grid of K equidistant points

$$z = [z_k] = z_*, z_2, \cdots, z_{K-1}, z^*,$$

and two independent samples from two independent populations A and B. We want to compare these two populations. We have to consider the distribution of the estimated difference between the two dominance curves:

$$\hat{\delta}(x) = \hat{F}_s^A(x) - \hat{F}_s^B(x).$$

Davidson and Duclos (2000) have derived the asymptotic distribution of $\hat{\delta}(x)$ which is normal with zero mean and variance-covariance matrix the sum of the two variances when A and B are independent:

$$\sqrt{n}(\hat{\delta}_s(z) - \delta_s(z)) \sim \mathcal{N}(0, \Omega = \Sigma_A + \Sigma_B).$$
 (8)

Several dominance tests can be built on this result, depending on the choice of the null hypothesis. They however lead to complicated distributions reviewed in Dardanoni and Forcina (1999). However, a much simpler test can

be built by testing H_2 of no restriction against H_1 of $\delta_s(x) \ge 0$. It consists in computing separately the K values of the Student statistics of a significant difference and then to take their minimum. Consequently, our test statistics is:

$$T_{21} = \min_{z_i} \hat{\delta}(z_i) / \omega_{ii}.$$

This statistics has two advantages. It is easy to compute. Its asymptotic distribution is simple as it is a N(0, 1) under the null. Davidson and Duclos (2013) recommend to use this test. They however show that it produces coherent results only if we truncate the tails of the distributions, regions where we have not enough observations. This trimming operation becomes natural when we test for restricted dominance provided the bounds z_* et z^* are adequately chosen.

3.3 A Bayesian test

There is a number of domains where classical and Bayesian procedures provide identical inference results. For instance the usual regression model under normality assumption for the error term and a non-informative prior. However, tests is the domain where the two approaches significantly differ. One of the reasons is that in a Bayesian framework we compute the posterior probability of an hypothesis and that there is no privileged hypothesis like the null hypothesis in the classical test theory of Neyman and Pearson.

In a Bayesian framework, testing for restricted stochastic dominance means first defining a grid of np points over $[z_*, z^*]$ and then computing the posterior probability of:

$$\Pr(\delta(z|\theta)) \ge 0,$$

where θ is a parameter and

$$\delta(x|\theta) = F_s^A(x|\theta_A) - F_s^B(x|\theta_B).$$

The crucial point is of course to obtain an analytical expression for the parametric form $\delta(x|\theta)$. Then, the condition $\delta(z|\theta) \ge 0$ defines a logical vector of zeros and ones. It is equivalent to check any of the three conditions:

$$\prod_{i=1}^{np} \mathbb{1}[\delta(z_i|\theta) > 0] = 1$$
(9)

$$\max_{i} \mathbb{1}[\delta(z_i|\theta) > 0] = 1, \tag{10}$$

$$\min_{i} \mathbb{1}[-\delta(z_i|\theta) < 0] = 1, \tag{11}$$

where $\mathbb{1}$ is the indicator function. Let us now suppose that we have managed to derive the posterior density of θ , say $\varphi(\theta|x)$ and obtained *m* draws from this posterior density by any simulation method. We have for instance:

$$\Pr\left(\max_{z} d(z|y) > 0\right) = \int_{\theta} \mathbb{1}\left[\max_{z} \delta(z|\theta) > 0\right] \varphi(\theta|x) d\theta$$
$$\simeq \frac{1}{m} \sum_{j=1}^{m} \mathbb{1}\left[\max_{z} \delta(z|\theta^{(j)}) > 0\right].$$
(12)

Once we have computed this posterior probability, we have all the information needed to compare two distribution by means of restricted stochastic dominance, which means that we have the posterior probability that there is less poverty in distribution B than in distribution A for a poverty range $[z_*, z^*]$.

For practical implementation, Lander et al. (2020) have used mixtures of gamma densities to model the income distribution in Indonesia. They develop Bayesian tests of stochastic dominance and restricted stochastic dominance. They compute posterior probabilities for stochastic dominance for the poorest 10% of the population, to assess whether their situation has improved over time. We shall see that comparing two GICs relates to first order stochastic dominance while comparing two TIP curves is another way for testing restricted stochastic dominance at the second order.

4 GIC dominance

Because a GIC represents the difference between two quantiles functions, it corresponds to the p-approach to dominance of Davidson and Duclos (2000). We have first-order stochastic if $g_t(p) > 0$ for all p. Growth has been welfareimproving in terms of first-order stochastic dominance if $g_t(p) \ge 0$ for all pwith strict inequality holding at least for one point p. We have restricted stochastic dominance if the range of p is limited to $p \in [0, F(z)]$.

4.1 **Pro-poor growth**

For each point p of a grid, Fourrier-Nicolaï and Lubrano (2021) evaluate:

$$\Pr(g_t(p) > 0) \simeq \frac{1}{m} \sum_{j=1}^m \mathbb{1}[g_t(p|\theta^{(j)}) > 0],$$
(13)

which allows us to see for which part of the income distribution the situation has been improved. The probability of dominance defined as:

$$\Pr(g_t(p) > 0) \simeq \frac{1}{m} \sum_{j=1}^m \mathbb{1}[\min_p(g_t(p|\theta^{(j)})) > 0].$$
(14)

A further requirement is that growth has been favourable to the poor, leading to the vector corresponding to $p \in [0, F(z)]$:

$$\Pr(g_t(p) > \gamma) \simeq \frac{1}{m} \sum_{j=1}^m \mathbb{1}[g_t^{(j)}(p) > \gamma^{(j)}],$$
(15)

where

$$\gamma^{(j)} = \log \sum_{k} \eta^{(j)}_{k,2} e^{\mu^{(j)}_{k,2} + \sigma^{2(j)}_{k,2}} - \log \sum_{k} \eta^{(j)}_{k,1} e^{\mu^{(j)}_{k,1} + \sigma^{2(j)}_{k,1}}$$
(16)

is the j^{th} draw of the average growth rate between t and t-1 when the two income distributions are modelled as a mixture of lognormals.

4.2 Trickle down theory and the UK case

In the previous chapter, we have derived various GIC to analyse the impact of economic growth in the UK over the period 1979-1996 under the government of Margaret Thatcher. We now report probabilistic judgements coming from Fourrier-Nicolaï and Lubrano (2021).

Table 1 provides probabilities of pro-poor growth computed using (15) for each decile for the periods 1979-1988 and 1992-1996, using three different parametric models. We keep in mind that the mixture models should be the closest one to the distribution free approach as it corresponds to a semiparametric approach and thus represent the case with minimum bias. The three models deliver the same probability of anti-poor growth up to the 0.60^{th} quantile and the same probability of pro-rich growth from the 0.90^{th} quantile for 1979-1988. There are however differences for the 0.70^{th} quantile where the log-normal model over-evaluates the probability that this quantile has benefited more from growth, nearly crossing the mythical value of 0.50. When we consider the second period (1992-1996), Kakwani (1980)'s form is fairly well in accordance with the mixture model. The log-normal model provides slightly different probabilities for quantiles greater than 0.60, but do not contradict the essential message when 0.50 is taken as the reference to decide if growth is pro-poor or not. In summary, the extra parameter of

Table 1: Probability of pro-poor growth, whole sample									
p	0.10	0.20	0.30	0.40	0.50	0.60	0.70	0.80	0.90
	1979-1988								
Log-normal	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.04	0.48	0.97	1.00
Kakwani	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.11	0.75	1.00
Mixture	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.01	0.29	0.93	1.00
	1992-1996								
Log-normal	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.99	0.93	0.64	0.18	0.00
Kakwani	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.97	0.91	0.76	0.53	0.28	0.06
Mixture	1.00	1.00	1.00	0.99	0.93	0.77	0.58	0.39	0.19

-1 . 1 .

the Kakwani (1980)'s model allows to provide more reliable conclusions than the simple log-normal model.

Table 1 can also be read in more restrictive way. Pro-poor growth is defined in (15) as the probability that the lower quantiles increase more than average up to the quantile defined by the poverty rate in the first period. Poverty rates for 1979 and 1992 are respectively 0.135 and 0.196, using the poverty line defined as 60% of the median income. This implies that Table 1 can be limited to the first two columns to decide if growth was pro-poor or not. The answer becomes unambiguous for all models.

Table 2: Probability of pro-poor growth for 1979-1988 using the Kakwani (1980)'s GIC

p	0.10	0.20	0.30	0.40	0.50	0.60	0.70	0.80	0.90
	1979-1988								
Retired	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.03	0.26	0.78	0.99	1.00
Working	0.24	0.66	0.89	0.97	0.99	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Unemployed	0.04	0.01	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
Lone parents	0.06	0.01	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
	1992-1996								
Retired	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
Working	0.67	0.47	0.45	0.47	0.51	0.54	0.56	0.54	0.43
Unemployed	1.00	1.00	0.99	0.95	0.74	0.35	0.09	0.01	0.00
Lone parents	1.00	0.99	0.99	0.99	0.99	0.98	0.97	0.95	0.86

We complete this picture by computing pro-poor growth probabilities for different subgroups as reported in Table 2. During the first period, retired people gained more than average after the 0.70^{th} decile while the working group gained more than average starting from the 0.20^{th} decile. Unemployed and lone parents gained less than average for all deciles. During the second period, all the deciles gained more than average for retired and lone parents. Unemployed gained more than average up to the median. The probabilities for the working group are un-conclusive.

5 TIP dominance

There is a close relation between GIC dominance and first order stochastic dominance simply because a GIC is the difference between two quantile functions. We have the same type of relation, but at a lesser extend, between TIP dominance and second order stochastic dominance, but this time restricted stochastic dominance, just because a TIP curve is essentially a poverty deficit curve. Remember what we said about the relation between poverty deficit curves and stochastic dominance.

5.1 Stochastic dominance and TIP dominance

Robust poverty ranking can be obtained using the poverty deficit curve obtained when (1) is seen as a function of z and letting z vary within a given interval. This corresponds to the notion of restricted stochastic dominance of Atkinson (1987), at the order 2 when $\alpha = 1$. This is the primal approach to stochastic dominance. The dual approach to stochastic dominance consider quantiles and the order 2 corresponds to Generalised Lorenz ordering. As it is related to the Generalised Lorenz curve, the TIP curve provides a natural framework for testing restricted second order stochastic dominance. We have however to show how. We first propose a definition of TIP dominance and then explore what it implies in term of stochastic dominance.

Definition 3 Let us consider two income distributions corresponding to populations A and B and a common poverty line. Population A TIP dominates B if $TIP_A(p,z) \leq TIP_B(p,z) \ \forall p \in [0,1]$, and the strict inequality holds at least for one p. The strict TIP dominance requires that this inequality is strict for all p.

Remark:

TIP dominance according to the definition given in the 4th footnote of Jenkins and Lambert (1997) implies that there is more poverty in Athan in B if A TIP dominates B. This might appear counter-intuitive when confronted to stochastic dominance. Thus, in our context, TIP dominance will mean less poverty as in Thuysbaert (2008). Jenkins and Lambert (1998), with their theorem 1 provide a relation between TIP dominance and poverty ordering. Their theorem could be rephrased as follows (see also Thuysbaert 2008):

Theorem 1 Let us consider two TIP curves and a common poverty line. The following two conditions are equivalent:

- 1. $TIP_A(p, z) \leq TIP_B(p, z)$ for all $p \in [0, 1]$
- 2. $P_A(\lambda z) \leq P_B(\lambda z)$ for all $\lambda \in [0, 1]$,

where P(z) is the poverty deficit curve defined in (3).

This theorem means that TIP dominance is equivalent to restricted stochastic dominance at the order 2 over the range [0, z], which means for all poverty lines lower or equal to z. In other words, if $TIP_A(p, z)$ is always below $TIP_B(p, z)$ with a common z, then there is less poverty intensity and less inequality among the poor in A than in B for all common poverty lines smaller than or equal to z. However, we cannot say anything about poverty headcount. Furthermore and like for Lorenz curves, when TIP curves intersect there is indeterminacy since the poverty ranking can be reversed for some values of p. So no ranking can be provided in this case.



Figure 1: TIP dominance and no first order stochastic dominance

A situation of TIP dominance is illustrated in Figure 1. The red curve TIP dominates the green curve using a common z. Then the green curve

exhibits more poverty intensity P_1 than the red curve for any poverty line smaller than z and the ranking cannot be reversed for a smaller value of z. However, there is more poverty incidence P_0 in the red curve, so that we cannot rank the two distributions in term of global poverty even if there is restricted stochastic dominance at the second order.

5.2 A Bayesian test

Testing for TIP dominance in a Bayesian frameworks leads first to compute for each draw of θ a vector $\delta(p|\theta)$ of dimension k corresponding to the grid over p:

$$\delta(p|\theta) = TIP_A(p, z|\theta_A) - TIP_B(p, z|\theta_B).$$

The condition $\delta(x, p|\theta) \leq 0$ defines a logical vector of zeros and ones. It is then equivalent to check any of the three conditions:

- 1. $\prod_{i=1}^{k} \mathbb{1}[\delta(p_i|\theta) < 0] = 1,$
- 2. $\max_i \mathbb{1}[\delta(p_i|\theta) < 0] = 1,$
- 3. $\min_i \mathbb{1}[-\delta(p_i|\theta) > 0] = 1.$

So for instance:

$$\Pr\left(\max_{p} d(p|y) < 0\right) = \int_{\theta} \mathbb{1}\left[\max_{p} \delta(p|\theta) < 0\right] \varphi(\theta|y) d\theta$$
$$\simeq \frac{1}{m} \sum_{j=1}^{m} \mathbb{1}\left[\max_{p} \delta(p|\theta^{(j)}) < 0\right], \quad (17)$$

where $\varphi(\theta|y)$ is the posterior density of θ . The range of p has to be slightly restricted because all TIP curves are zero at p = 0. So the practical range for the test should be something like $p \in [0.01, F(z)]$, values adopted in e.g. Davidson and Duclos (2013).

Because TIP dominance corresponds to restricted second order stochastic dominance, TIP dominance does not imply less poverty incidence. Using $H(z|\theta) = P_0(z)$, we have to check the additional condition $H(z|\theta_A^{(j)}) < H(z|\theta_B^{(j)})$ and evaluate the proportion of draws when it is verified.

Finally, when can we say that the situation in A is not statistically different from the situation in B? Equality is rejected if, for at least one value of p_s , $\delta(p_s|\theta)$ is statistically different from zero. This means that we have to compute a credible interval for $\delta(p_s|\theta)$ and see if zero is included in this interval. If we find a single p_s for which zero does not belong to a say 90% credible interval for $\delta(p_s|\theta)$, then we can reject at the 90% level that the two TIP curves are equal.

5.3 Child poverty in Germany

We have detailed in the previous chapter a picture of child poverty in Germany, distinguishing between two periods 2007-2011 and 2002-2006. It increased a lot between 2002 and 2006 to finally decrease between 2007 and 2011. Formal dominance tests confirm this diagnostic. The probability that 2007-2011 TIP dominates 2002-2006 is equal to 0.997. For current child poverty, Table 3, shows that 2011 dominates all the other years, which means that child poverty is lowest for this year. Child poverty has significantly in-

			1	v
Year	2002	2006	2007	2011
2002	0.000	0.907	0.260	0.000
2006	0.003	0.000	0.002	0.000
2007	0.525	0.939	0.000	0.000
2011	1.000	1.000	1.000	0.000

Table 3: Probability of TIP dominance for current child poverty

Each line represents the probability that the corresponding year TIP dominates the year given in column.

creased between 2002 and 2006 as 2002 TIP dominates 2006 at 91% while it decreases after that date because 2007 TIP dominates 2006 at 94%.

5.4 The difference between child and adult poverty

So the evolution of poverty over the two subperiods concerned mainly children with an increase and a decrease, while there was no significant effect on the population of adults. This is confirmed by TIP dominance tests reported in

Year	2002	2006	2007	2011
2002	0.000	0.241	0.228	0.215
2006	0.496	0.000	0.435	0.370
2007	0.194	0.150	0.000	0.135
2011	0.493	0.403	0.424	0.000

Table	4:]	Prob	abili	ty of	TIP	dominanc	ce
	foi	· cur	rent	adul	t poy	vertv	

Each line represents the probability that the corresponding year TIP dominates the year given in column.

Table 4. There is no convincing probability of Tip dominance of any year for adult poverty. So child poverty has changed a lot over the period, while adult poverty remained at a comparative level.

6 Conclusion and discussion

Stochastic dominance and more precisely restricted stochastic dominance, allows us to make unambiguous judgements on poverty comparisons. We have not the same result when using simple poverty indices, because they can be very sensitive to the chosen poverty line. We have understood that testing for stochastic dominance is a complicated topic in a classical framework. This is due to the fact that we have to make simultaneous tests on a whole range of values, so defining the null hypothesis can be cumbersome. On the contrary, in a Bayesian framework we simply have to compute a posterior probability and there is no privileged hypothesis. Computing a posterior probability is particularly simple in a parametric framework, once we have a MCMC output for the parameters of the income distribution.

References

- Atkinson, A. (1970). The measurement of inequality. Journal of Economic Theory, 2:244–263.
- Atkinson, A. (1987). On the measurement of poverty. *Econometrica*, 55:749–764.
- Blackwell, D. (1953). Equivalent comparisons of experiments. Annals of Mathematical Statistics, 24:265–272.
- Dardanoni, V. and Forcina, A. (1999). Inference for lorenz curve orderings. The Econometrics Journal, 2(1):49–75.
- Davidson, R. and Duclos, J.-Y. (2000). Statistical inference for stochastic dominance and for the measurement of poverty and inequality. *Econometrica*, 68:1435–1464.
- Davidson, R. and Duclos, J.-Y. (2013). Testing for restricted stochastic dominance. *Econometric Reviews*, 32(1):84–125.
- Foster, J., Greer, J., and Thorbecke, E. (1984). A class of decomposable poverty measures. *Econometrica*, 52:761–765.
- Foster, J. and Shorrocks, A. (1988). Poverty orderings. *Econometrica*, 56(1):173–177.
- Fourrier-Nicolaï, E. and Lubrano, M. (2021). Bayesian inference for parametric growth incidence curves. In Bandyopadhyay, S., editor, *Research* on *Economic Inequality*, volume 29. Emerald Group Publishing Limited.
- Hadar, J. and Russell, W. R. (1969). Rules for ordering uncertain prospects. American Economic Reviw, 59:25–34.
- Jenkins, S. P. and Lambert, P. J. (1997). Three I's of poverty curves, with an analysis of UK poverty trends. Oxford Economic Papers, 49(3):317–327.
- Jenkins, S. P. and Lambert, P. J. (1998). Three I's of poverty curves and poverty dominance: TIPs for poverty analysis. In Slottje, D., editor, *Re-search on Economic Inequality*, volume 8, pages 39–56. JAI Press Inc.
- Kakwani, N. (1980). On a class of poverty measures. *Econometrica*, 48(2):437–446.

- Lander, D., Gunawan, D., Griffiths, W., and Chotikapanich, D. (2020). Bayesian assessment of Lorenz and stochastic dominance. *Canadian Jour*nal of Economics, 53(2):767–799.
- Ravallion, M. (1996). Comparaisons de pauvreté: concepts et méthodes. etudes sur la mesure des niveaux de vie. Working paper 122, World Bank.
- Thuysbaert, B. (2008). Inference for the measurement of poverty in the presence of a stochastic weighting variable. *The Journal of Economic Inequality*, 6(1):33–55.